
  
 
 
 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, April 16, 2024 - 5:30 p.m. 

Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to order. 

a. Invocation 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Public comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Commission on any matter, not on the 
agenda, may do so during this item.  Please state your name and address for 
the record and limit your comments to three minutes.  Please understand 
while the commission appreciates hearing your comments, State law (Texas 
Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from (1) engaging in discussion other 
than providing a statement of specific factual information or reciting existing 
City policy, and (2) taking action other than directing Staff to place the matter 
on a future agenda.  

 
3. Consider the minutes of the March 19, 2024, regular meeting. 

 
4. Z-24-09 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Light Industrial 

to Planned Development – Light Industrial (PD-LI) on approximately 13.475 acres 
located at 212 Groves Road. 

 
5. Administrative Plat Approvals. 
 
 
If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the 
City Clerk at (254) 933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance. 
 

CITY OF BELTON 



 
 

1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
Tuesday, March 19, 2024 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North 
Alexander Street. Present Commission members:  Chair Brett Baggerly, Luke Potts, Quinton Locklin, 
Nichole Fischer, Dominica Garza, and Justin Ruiz.  The following members were absent: David Jarratt, 
Alton McCallum, and Ty Taggart.  The following staff members were present:  Assistant City Manager 
Matt Bates, Director of Planning Bob van Til, Senior Planner Tina Moore, Planning Administrator 
Melinda Brice, and IT System Analyst Alex Munger. 
 
1. Call To Order. 

 
Chair Baggerly called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Invocation – Commission Member Ruiz gave the Invocation.  
Pledge of Allegiance – Chair Baggerly led the Pledge. 
 

2. Public comments. (Audio 00:52)  
 

Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. 
 
Jill Robins, of Holland, TX, addressed the Commission Members about the State of Emergency 
Declaration for the Solar Eclipse and concerns for planned activities in Belton. 
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 

3. Consider approval of minutes from the previous meeting. (Audio 03:42) 
 
Commission Member Potts motioned to approve minutes from the February 20, 2024, meeting, 
seconded by Commission Member Fischer.  The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays.   
 

4.  Z-24-05 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway 
(CH) to Single Family 3 with Conservation Revitalization Overlay (SF-3 w/ CR Overlay) on 
approximately 0.1430 acres located at 401 W. Avenue J.  (Audio 04:04) 

 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing.  
 
Ninfa Dominguez, Applicant’s Spouse, of 1293 Boxer, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Chair Baggerly reopened the public hearing. 



 
 

2 
 

David Gonzales, of 309 W. Avenue J, had questions for the Commission Members and stated this 
was his mother’s property. 
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore answered questions from the Commission Members, and after further 
discussion, it was confirmed this wasn’t Mr. Gonzales’ mother’s property.   
 
Commission Member Potts made a motion to approve Z-24-05 as presented. Commission Member 
Ruiz seconded the motion. The motion passed with ayes 6 and 0 nays. 
 

5. Z-24-06 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned Development 
(PD) – Expo to Planned Development (PD) – Commercial District 1 (C1), on approximately 
8.406 acres located at 2905 S. IH 35 Service Rd.  (Audio 12:04) 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing.  
 
Kendall Wimberly, Project Engineer, of 301 N. 3rd, Temple, TX, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore answered questions from the Commission Members.  Commission 
Member Fischer inquired about the height of the fence adjacent to the owner of the opposition letter 
received.  The fence height is proposed at 6 feet, but the applicant was agreeable to increase it to 8 
feet.   
 
Commission Member Potts made a motion to approve Z-24-06 as presented. Commission Member 
Fischer seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

6. Z-24-07 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family – 2 (SF-2) 
to Planned Development - Single Family-3 (PD-SF-3) on approximately 0.5592 acres located 
at 305, 307, & 309 E. Avenue Q.  (Audio 20:24) 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing.  
 
Pat Patterson, Applicant, of 1605 Alta Vista Loop, Temple, TX, explained the reason for the request 
and spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Locklin made a motion to approve Z-24-07 as presented. Commission Member 
Fischer seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 



 
 

3 
 

7. P-24-01 - Hold a public hearing and consider a residential replat of the Samuel Davis 
Subdivision Phase II, Lots 1 and 2, to create 3 residential lots, located at 305, 307, & 309 E. 
Avenue Q, on 0.5592 acres at the northwest corner of E. Avenue Q and S. Wall St.  (Audio 
24:56) 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. 
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Fischer made a motion to approve P-24-01 as presented. Commission Member 
Ruiz seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

8. Z-24-08 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned Development – 
Retail (PD-R) to Amended Planned Development – Retail (Amended PD-R) on approximately 
0.775 acres located at 500 S. Main St.  (Audio 26:39) 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing.  
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Fischer made a motion to approve Z-24-08 as presented. Commission Member 
Locklin seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

9. Consider amendments to the Belton Zoning Ordinance, Section 38 relating to Murals.  (Audio 
29:13) 
 
Planning Director van Til presented this item. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. 
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Planning Director van Til answered questions from the Commission Members. 
 
Senior Planner Ms. Moore answered questions from the Commission Members. 
 
Assistant City Manager Bates addressed the Commission Members stating as a part of the 
Beautification Committee they are pro murals and want to encourage more people to do murals.  He 
further stated that this was just to put a process in place for murals.  
 
Commission Member Potts made a motion to disapprove item 9 as currently presented.  
Recommends revisions before moving forward to City Council.  Commission Member Garza 



 
 

4 
 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed with 4 ayes and 2 nays with Chair Baggerly and 
Commission Member Fischer opposing. 

 
10. Consider amendments to the Belton Zoning Ordinance, Section 36 relating to  Accessory   

Dwelling Units.  (Audio 1:15) 
 
Planning Director van Til presented this item. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. 
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed.   
 
Commission Member Fischer made a motion to approve item 10 as presented.  Commission Member 
Locklin seconded the motion.  The item passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

11. Administrative Plat Approvals for February 2024. 
 

Senior Planner Ms. Moore presented the list of administratively approved plats.  
 
 With no other city business, the Planning and Zoning Commission was adjourned at 6:54 p.m. (Audio 

ends at 1:24) 

        __________________________________ 
         Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Attest: 
____________________________________ 
Melinda Brice, Planning Administrator 

 



 
 

 

P&Z Agenda Item 
April 16, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – Planning & Zoning Agenda Item                   
 
 
      Date:             April 16, 2024  
      Zoning No.:            Z-24-09 

Request:            LI to PD-LI 
Applicant/Owners: Belton Engineering / CSC 

Group   
 

Agenda Item #4 
 
Z-24-09 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Light Industrial to 
Planned Development – Light Industrial (PD-LI) on approximately 13.475 acres located at 
212 Groves Road. 
 

• Address: 212 Groves Rd 

• Acres: 13.475 acres 

• Current Zoning: LI           Current Use: Vacant lot 

• Proposed Zoning: PD-LI           Proposed Use: Industrial Warehouse Building 

• Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Commercial Corridor  

• Design Standards Type Area: Type Area 2 

• Project Analysis:  

o Water: Belton CCN. Available at the site. Sewer: Belton CCN. available 
on site.  

o The applicant is requesting a change in zoning to a PD- LI District to reduce the 
required parking standards to construct a future warehouse of approximately 
73,125. The code requires 73 parking spaces (not less than one space for 
every 1,000 SF of gross floor area). Phase I of the project proposes 51 spaces 
(one space per 1,434 SF). Phase II will defer the remaining 24 parking spaces, 

Direction Zoning  Use 
North C-2 Legacy Auto Auction 
South LI Warehouses (UPS, Frito-

Lay) 
West LI Vacant Lot 
East PD-Expo Expo Center / RV Dealer 



 
 

 

P&Z Agenda Item 
April 16, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

until an increase to the building’s gross floor area or the sale of the property or 
adjacent properties currently owned by the applicant.   

o The applicant has two other buildings in the vicinity with a combined total of 123 
parking spaces. 30-40 parking spaces are currently being used. The applicant 
stated that the remaining spaces should be more than enough to accommodate 
the new building.  

o The new building will start with about 20 employees, rotating during a 24-hour 
period.  

• Recommendation: The requested zoning appears to be reasonable given the 
applicant’s ownership of the adjacent properties, limited workers with rotating shifts, 
and available parking in the vicinity.  

Recommend approval of the requested zoning change from LI to PD-LI  
1. The use of this property shall conform to the PD and LI requirements in all 

respects. 
a. The applicant is allowed to defer 24 required parking spaces until 

additional space is required due to an increase in the building's gross 
floor area, or the sale of the property or adjacent properties to a 
different owner.  

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Landscape Design Standards 
c. Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation Standards.  

 
• Attachments: 

1. Site Map 
2. Property Location Map 
3. Zoning map 
4. Aerial photo 
5. Zoning notice to owners/Owner notification list/Map with zoning notice boundary 

(200’) 
 

 
• For more information, please contact: 

Tina Moore, AICP 
Email: tmoore@beltontexas.gov 
Phone : (245) 933-5891 

mailto:tmoore@beltontexas.gov












*A notarized signature may be required for a written protest letter, if more than 20% of the adjacent neighbors 
protest the requested zoning change. 

 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
 
THE CITY OF BELTON HAS RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM: BELTON ENGINEERING, INC WITH PERMISSION FROM CSC GROUP,  
TO CHANGE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:   212 GROVES ROAD                                                                                              ,  
FROM A(N) LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI)                                                                                                                                 ZONING DISTRICT,  
TO A(N) PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (PD-LI)                                                                         ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO ALLOW FOR: THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 73,000 SQUARE FOOT WAREHOUSE WITH REDUCED PARKING SPACES .  
  

THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
PURSUANT TO THIS REQUEST AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, April 16, 2024, AT THE T.B. HARRIS CENTER, 401 N. ALEXANDER, 
BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
IF APPROVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, THIS ITEM WILL BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR A 

PUBLIC HEARING BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  THAT MEETING WILL BE AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, April 23, 2024, AT THE T. B. 
HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER, 401 ALEXANDER STREET, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
YOU ARE RECEIVING THIS NOTICE BECAUSE YOU RESIDE WITHIN 200’ OF THE PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE.  PER 

STATE LAW, THE CITY IS REQUIRED TO NOTIFY YOU OF THE REQUESTED ZONING CHANGE. AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY 
OWNER, THE CITY OF BELTON INVITES YOU TO MAKE YOUR VIEWS KNOWN REGARDING THIS ZONING CHANGE.  YOU MAY 
SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS BY COMPLETING THIS FORM AND RETURNING IT TO P.O. BOX 120, BELTON, TX  76513 OR 
VIA EMAIL TO PLANNING@BELTONTEXAS.GOV, PRIOR TO 1:00 P.M. ON APRIL 16, 2024. 

 
IF YOU REQUIRE INTERPRETER SERVICES FOR THE DEAF OR HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 

CLERK AT CITY HALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THESE MEETINGS. 
 

  
circle one 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, I (PROTEST) (APPROVE) THE REQUESTED ZONING AMENDMENT PRESENTED IN THE 
APPLICATION ABOVE FOR THE REASONS EXPRESSED BELOW: 
 
1.   
 
 
2.   
 
 
3.   
  

(ADDITIONAL COMMENTS MAY BE ADDED ON A SEPARATE SHEET OF PAPER) 
 
 
SIGNATURE OF THE PROPERTY OWNER: _______________________________   DATE: _____________________ 

 
     
                                                                                                    PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                        CITY OF BELTON 
                                                        P. O. BOX 120 
                                                        BELTON, TEXAS  76513  
                                                        254.933.5291 

mailto:Planning@beltontexas.gov




3239 

WESTWOOD ASSOCIATES LLC ETAL 

2027 S 61ST ST STE 100A 

TEMPLE, TX 76504 
 

 
12221 

GILLEYLEN, RUSSELL CRAIG & PATTIE SUZETTE 

27301 BLUE CEDAR LN 

SPRING, TX 77386 
 

 
29619 

BROWN, GREGORY M SR & PAMELA M 

565 N MAGNOLIA AVE 

EL CAJON, CA 92020-3608 
 

34022 

DECKER, DAVID G 

205 DECKER RD 

BELTON, TX 76513-4625 
 

 
75691 

REDDYLEE LLC 

6007 WOODED CREEK CV 

TEMPLE, TX 76502 
 

 
105174 

PARKWAY INVESTMENT HOLDINGD LLC - SERIES 101 

PO BOX 1775 

BELTON, TX 76513 
 

114705, 470419 

FIGS LLC 

101 W ADELANTA PL 

ROUND ROCK, TX 78681-1780 
 

 
150743 

REINFORCING STEEL SUPPLY INC 

13730 AVENUE K 

AUSTIN, TX 78728-7603 
 

 
489830 

CSC GROUP L P 

209 GROVE RD 

BELTON, TX 76513 

 
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 Recorded 
Date Subdivision Name Acreage /Location 

No. of 
Lots Description Waivers

3/11/2024 Hamster Wheel Addition
3 ACRES, 7349 W. US 
190 SVC. RD. 1 1 commercial block

 6' sidewalk 
required -escrow 
fund (required 
with building 
permit #10727)

3/13/2024 Glaske Brothers Addition
.6468 ACRES / 116 
SMITH ST 3 1 residential block 

No variance 
provided 

Administrative Plat Approvals






	P&Z Minutes - 03-19-24 
	Z-24-09 - 212 Groves Rd - Application
	Z-24-09 Location
	Z-24-09 Aerial
	PON -Z-24-09 - 212 Groves Rd
	Z-24-09
	Z-24-09_mailing_list.xls
	South Loop_C1.0 - Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SITE


	Hamster Wheel Addition-1
	Glaske Brother Addition-1
	3 - March 24.pdf
	Sheet1

	3 - March 24.pdf
	Sheet1

	3 - March 2024.pdf
	Sheet1




